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To the Members of Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Arvind Goodhill Suit
Manufacturing Private Limited ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31¢
March, 2018 and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Change in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Iind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind As financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statermnents that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

We have taken into acccunt the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, inctuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS financial statements, whether due to fra. ! or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis fo*i; otéroa#dit ogpinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by, the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India includiig the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March, 2018, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

{c)

{d)

(f)

{g)

W

We have sought and obtained all tha information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Repart are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under saction 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31%
March, 2018 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31% March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in

terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinien and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;




SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

iil.

Provision has been made in the Ind AS financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting stanuards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring amount, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 110417

O el dr b

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner

Membership No. 100892

Bangalore

April 21, 2018
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SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARVIND GOODHILL SUIT MANUFACTURING PRIVATE LIMITED

Referred to in Parégraph 1 under the heading “Report un other legal and regulatory requirements” of our
Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date,

(i)

(i)
(Hif)
(iv}
(v)
(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

yZ

(a) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
gquantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during
the year in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our opinion
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. We are
informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(c) There are no immovable properties held in the name of the Company and thus requirement
of clause (i) (c) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals
by the management and the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks
and the book records were not material having regard to the size of the Company, and the same
have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

The Company has not granted secured / unsecured loans to Companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Consequently, requirements of clause {ili) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

The Company has not advanced any lpan or given any guarantee or provided any security or
made any investment covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act. Consequently,
requirements of clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder. No order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or
any other Tribunal.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
Company’s product. Consequently, requirement of clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order is not
applicable.

(a) The Company is generally reguiar in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations.given to
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of outstanding statutory dues were in arrears as
at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts payable as
on March 31, 2018 on account of any dispute.

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial tastitutions and banks.

4
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SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

(ix)

()

(xi)

(xii)

{(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

{xwvi}

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer.
However, the term loans obtained during the year were, prima facie, applied by the Company for
the purpose for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year under review.
Consequently, requirements of Clause {xi} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

The Company Is not a Nidhi Company. Consequentily, requirements of clause (xii) of paragraph 3
of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements etc,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Consequently, requirements
of clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not entered Into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him.

According to the nature of the business, the Company is net required to be .registered under
saction 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417X

CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.
Partner

Membership No, 100892

Bangalore
April 21, 2018
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SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

ANNEXURE "B"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND
AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ARVIND GOODHILL SUIT MANUFACTURING PRIVATE

LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arvind Goodhill Suit
Manufacturing Private Limited (“the Company”} as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the iriternal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential compeonents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting was establlshed and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and thelr operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and opeérating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinicn on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

//}?”




SORAB S. ENGINEER & CO. (Regd.)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only In accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reascnable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evatuation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion; the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on “the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established. by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in thetGuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 110417W

el b P
CA. Chokshi Shreyas B.

Partner
Membership No. 100892

Bangalore
April 21, 2018
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Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

ASSLETS

I. Nun-current assets

Partner
Membership No. 170852

Bangalore
April 21, 2018

(@) Property, plant and equipment 5 483,365,121 494,337,587
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 1,832,727 1,972,581
(¢} fmangble assets L] 1,549,450 1,928,178
(d) Financial assets
(1) Loans 7 57,182 -
(i1} Other financiat assets 7 32,501,157 42,214,569
(&) Gther non-currenl assels 8 6,150 3,879,755
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 33 33015403 44,893,555
Total non-current assets 552,327,230 589,226,225
[1.Current asscts
{a} Inventories 9 289,003,112 255,245,198
(b) Financial assets
(1) Frade receivables 7 134,475,977 134,176,672
(ii} Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,160,447 1,419,537
(i1} Bank balance other than (ii) above T 14,833,624 1,803,300
(iv} Others financial assets 7 3,338,731 5571428
(cy Current {ax assets (aet) 10 218,075 1,711,835
() Other current assets 8 131,573,981 63,570,776
Total current assets 574,601,947 463,198,746
Total Assets 1,126,929.177 1,052 724 9711
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eyuity
Equity share capital 11 9,700,000 8,400,000
Other equity 12 480,019,570 371,347,093
Total equity 489,719,570 379,747,093
LIABILITIES
1. Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Bomowings 13 94,898,831 161,095,444
(b) Long-term provisions 14 9,645,810 6,145,074
(¢} Government grants 13 29,889,874 32,070,755
Total non-curreni liabilities 134,434,515 199314275
M.Current liabilities
(a) Financial Labilities
(1) Borrowings 13 231,816,818 176,138,941
(1) Trade payables 13 173,767.486 201,066,064
(i) Other financial tabilities 13 88,920,680 82,838,835
[b) Othes-current liabilities i6 5,733,661 11,320,262
{c) Short-ierm.provisions 14 348,566 117,720
{d) Government grants I . 2,180,881 2,180,884
Total current liabilities 502,775,092 473,663,603
Total cquity and liabilities 1.126,929.177 1,052,724.971
Summary of yignificant accounting policies 3
The accampanying notes are an intogral pant of the financial stalements.
As per our report of even date
For Sorab S. Engineer & Co. For and on behall of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private
(Al Firp's Regfpation No 110417W Limited-
CpadbSlog——
“A, Chokshi Shreyas B.
ﬁ‘gﬂ;_lDirecmr Director




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Statement ef profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

Income

Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 17 804,879 316 521,113,654
Sale of Services 17 28,227,473 27.509.883
Operating Income 17 69,622,627 38,402,787
Reveaue from operations 992,729,416 587,085,724 ;
Other income 18 35478.693 32857402 H
Totat income (I) 1,028.208,10% 619,943,186 <
Expenscs
Cost of rovw materzals and accessorios consumed 19 504.797.212 300,346,261
Purchase of stock-in-trade - -
Changes in inventerics of finished goods. work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 20 (22.942.791) (69,993.042)
Employee benefits expense 21 282,701,350 239,026,267
Finance costs 22 29428 771 33,793,361
Depreciation and amortisation cxpense 21 36,514,042 29932706
Other expenses 24 131.053,794 102,779,081
Total expenses (IT) 055,552,378 642,086,634
Profit/{(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (ITI=(I-IT) 72,655,731 (22,143,448) :
Exceptional items (IV) - - i
Profit/(Loss) belore tax (V) = (I11-IV) 72,655,731 (22,143,448)
Tax cxpense
Current tax 25 13,191,776
Deferred tax 25 12,634,651 (46,101,289
Taotal lax expense {(VI) 25,826,427 {46,101,28%)
Profit for the year (VIT) = (V-VI) 46,829,304 23,957,841
QOther comprehensive income
A. Other comprehensive income not to be rectassified fo profit
.or loss in subscquent periods:
Re-measurement gains / {losses) on defined benefit plans 12 1,283,233 {868,729
[ncome tax cifect 25 (356.995) (577.437)
th‘olhcr comprehensive income not to be reclassificd to prefit or loss in subscequent 476,238 1:291.292
periods (A)
B. Other comprehensive income that may be reclassificd te profit
-or loss in subsequent periods:
Net gains / {loss) on hedging instriments in a cash flow hedge 12 (3.896,559) 936,853
Income tax effect 1,113,494 (295,668)
Net other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods (B) (2,783,065) 661,185
Tuotal uther comprehensive income for the peried, net of tax (VIIN) = (A+B} {1,856,827) 1,952,477
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (VIT+VIET) 44,972,477 15,910,318
Earning per equity share [nominal value per share Rs. 10/~ {March 31,201 7: Rs. 104-))
Basic and Diluted - 29 49.5} 28.52
Sununary of significanl accounling policics 3

The accompanying aoies are an integral part of the financial statcments.

As per aur repert of cven date
For Serab 5. Engincer & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Fir§s Regifirglion No.110417W
C{,«Ymr - *
‘A, Chokshi Shreyas .

Partner )
Muembership No.1 00§92

Bangalore
April 21, 2018

w oy
R

For and ©n behalf of the beard of directors of
Arvind Geodhil! Suit Manulcturing Private

O)irector Director
Tl




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

A. Equity share capital

As at April 1,2016 8,400,000
Issue of Equity Share capital -

As at March 31, 2017 8,400,000
Issuc of Equity Share capital 1,300,000
As at March 31, 2018 9,700,000

B. Other equity
Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

Balance as at April 1, 2016 401,800,000 {56,363,225) - 345,436,775
‘Profit for the year - 23,957,841 - 23,957,841
Addition during the year - - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - 1,297,292 661,185 1,952,477
Total Comprehensive income for the year - 25,249.133 661,185 25,910,318
Balance.as at March 31,2017 401,800,000 (31,114,092) 661,185 371,347,093
Balance as at April 1, 2017 401,800,000 (31,114,092) 661,185 371,347,093
Profit for the year - 46,829,304 - 46,829,304
Addition during the year 63,700,600 - 63,700,000
Other comprehensive income for the year 926,238 (2,783,065) (1,856,827)
Total Comprehensive income for the year 63,700,000 47,755,542 (2,783,065} 108,672,477
Balance as at March 31, 2018 465,500,000 16,641,450 (2,121,830) 480,019,570

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Sorab S. Engincer & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Arvind Geodhill Suit Manufacturing Private
ICAL Fir]ﬁ cht ation No. 1104 y7W Ci ' »
- p_— . /
CA. Choksli Shreyas B. irtet r( Director

Partner %a %ﬂ -

Membership No. 100892

Bangalore

pA”



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Statement of cash flows for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Rupees Rupees

A Operating activities

Profit/(Loss) Before taxation 72,655,731 {22,143.448)

Adjustments to reconcile profit befare tax fo net cash flows:

Depreciation /Amortization 30,514,042 29,932 706

Interest Income (1,812,076} (1,429.876)

Interest and Othier Borrowing Cost 20,428,771 33,795,361

Loss on Sale of assets 759,350 -

Bad Debts Written Off 3,419,151 989,501

Altowance for Bad Debis 6,589,616 6,292,182

Govermnmenl grants (2,130,881} {2,180,881)

) 66,717,979 67,398,993

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 139,373,710 45,255,545

Working Capital Changes:

Changes in Invenlorics (33,755,914) (128,397.437)

Changces in tade payables (27,299.478) 97,459,469

Changes in other current liabilitics {5.586,601) 7,449,843

Changes in other financial liabilities 1,166,265 1,251,719

Changes in provisions 5,012,815 4,736,920

Changes in loans and advances (57.182) 305,075

Changes intrade receivables. {10,308,072) (48,545,592}

‘Changes in other current assets {64,129,640) (33,949,1106)

Changes in other financial assets 10,989,256 300,712

Changes in Other Bank Balances (13,030,324 ~

Net Changes in Working Capital (136,998 875) {99,388 407)

Cash Generated from Operations 2,374,835 (54,132.862)

Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) (11,698,616) 1,027,736

Net Cash from Operating Activities (9,323,181) {53,105,126)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of tangiblefintangibie assets {20,068,332) (15.017.058)

Sale of langible/intangible assets 285,983 -

Interest [scome 1,812,076 1,429.876

Net cash flow from Investing Activities {17,970,273) (13,587,182)
€ Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Tssue of Share Capital 300,000 -

Securities Premium received 63,700,000 -

Changes in long termn Borrowings (64.214,741) (33.655,076)

Changes in short term borrowings 55,671,877 125,316,318

Interest and Other Borrowing Cost Paid {29.428.771) £33,795.361)

Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 27,034,364 57,865,881

Nef Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents {259,090) i8.826,427)

Cash & Cash cquivalent at the beginning ol the period 1.419.537 10,245,964

Cash & Cash equivalent at the end of the period 1,160,447 1.419.537
Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Rupecs Rupees

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: (Note 7)
Cash on Hand 473 473
Balances with Banks 1,159,974 1,419,064
Cash and cash equivalents 1,160,447 1,419,537
Effect of Exchange Ratc Changes -
Cash and cash equivalents as restated 1,160,447 1,419,537

As per our report of even date attached
For, Sorab S. Engineer & Co.
Firm Registzation No. 1 EO417W

Chartered Accou:(ujnf
~
CA. Chuokshi Shreyas B.

Parmer
Membership No., 100892

"

P

Bangalore
April 2] 201 y

o

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Arvind ‘Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private

W
Director

Dircetor
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NOTLES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YREAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1. Corporate EInformation
Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited is a Joint Venture between Arvind Limited, Goodhill
Corporation, Japan and F-One Limited, Japan. The Company has set up a project of manufacturing Suits.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the dircctors on
April 21, 2018.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation
2.1 Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) as
issued under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the followings:

» Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments);

*  Derivative financial instruments measured at fair vajue;
s Defined bencfit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;
*  Value in Use

2.3 Rounding of amounts

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee as per the
requirement of Schedule II1.

v




3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its financial
statements consistently to all the periods presented:

3.1, Current versus non~current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current

classification.

An asset is current when it is:
» Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
= Lxpccted to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or nsed to settle a liability for at least
twelve months afier the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
¢ Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
o [t is due to be settled within twelve moaths after the reporting period; or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. As the Company’s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable,
it is assumed 1o be twelve months.

3.2. Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the {inancial statements are continuously evaluated
by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors
(including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing
circumstances. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the

results are known / materialised.
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The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred
after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.

3.3. Foreign currencies

3.4

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency spot rates
al the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such transaction and on
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange ratc
arc recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign cuirency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gatn or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profil or

loss, respectively).

Fair valoe measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and Investments at fair value at the end

of each reporting period.
IFair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

* In the absence of a principal market, in thie most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements arc
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurcment as a whole:
» Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
« Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
® Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unocbservable. '

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(bascd on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
cach reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measureément, such as asset held for

sale.

Lxternal valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties. Involvement of external
valuers is decided upon annually by the management afier discussion with and approval by the Company’s
Audit Committee, Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
prolessional standards are maintained. Management decides, after discussions with the Company’s external
valuers, which valuation techniques and .inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation 1o contracts and other relevant documents.

Management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair

value ol each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable on yearly basis.
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3.5

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilitics on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hicrarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
refevant notes.
» Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
* Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date of transition
e Investment properties
s Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
nnpairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant
parts of Property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the. Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost s recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the récognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost {or the decommissioning of
an assel after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision

are met.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the peried till such asscts are
ready to be put to use,

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready for their intended
use at the balance sheet date,

Derecognition

An ttem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no.future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less residual
values over their useful lives of the assets, using the straight line method as prescribed under Part C of
Schedule If to the Companies Act 2013, s e T e T -
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3.7,

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are accounted for as
separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful life or over the remaining useful
life of the principal assets whichever is less.

The management belicves that the useful life as given above best represent the period over which
nanagement expects 1o use these assets. Hence the useful fives for these assets are different from the usclul
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule I to the Companies Act.2013.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

The residual values, useful lives-and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Entangible Assects

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, il any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which

expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewced at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered o modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from

indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and LLoss when the asset is derecognised.
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Amortisation ‘
Software is amortized over management estimate of its useful life of 5 years or License Period whichever
is lower and Patent/Knowhow is amortized over its useful validity period of § years.

Inventorics

Inventories of Raw material, Work-in-progress and Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. However, Raw material and other items held for use in the production of inventories are
not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be
sold at or above cost.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

e Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

e Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direcct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal opcrating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

All aother inventories of stores and consumables are valued at cost. The stock of waste is valued at net
rcalisable value. Excise duty wherever applicable is provided on finished goods lying within the factory
and bonded warehouse at the end of the year. Goods in transit and in Bonded Warehouse stocks are stated
al actual cost up to the date of the Balance Sheet,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less cstimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to seil and its value in use, It is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not gencrate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the
Company. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is vsed. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiarics or
other available fair value indicators.
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forécast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for a property
previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the
impairment.is also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

[ntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

3.10. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company,
the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold, and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardicss
of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its
revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitnde

and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Sale of goods
Revenue Trom the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

goods have passed to the buyer, which generally coincides with dispatch. Revenue from export sales are
recognized on shipment basis. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable including excise duty, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts
and volume rebates.

Rendering of services

Revenue from job work services is recognized based on the services rendered in accordance with the terms

of contracts.
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Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
assct. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other
income in the statement of profit or loss.

J.11. Financial instraments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or cquity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(1) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets, except investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are recognised initially at
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of tfinancial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(ii) Subscquent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent meastrement, financial assets are classificd in four categories:
e [inancial assets at amortised cost
e Iinancial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Iinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
» [Lquity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYTOCH)

e Kinancial asscts at amortised cost :
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. Afier initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included _
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.



Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
arc. solely payments of principal and interest (SPPl) on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at cach
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the assct,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L..
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial asset is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not mect the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classificd as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise ncets
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as at fair value
through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismateh’. The
Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

After mitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iif) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

or

The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assct or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without materiai delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
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recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of considcration
that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of fimancial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assels which are cquity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets,
Changes to the business model are expected to be nfrequent. The Company’s senior management
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes arc evident to external partics. A change in
the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applics the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassifications and how they are accounted for.

Original Revised Accountling treatment
classification classification
Amortised cost FVTPL Fair wvalue is measured at reclassification date. :

Difference between previous amortized cost and fair
value is recognised in P&L.
FVTPL Amortised Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross
carrying amount. EIR is calculated based on the new

£ross carrying amount.

Amortised cost | FVTOC! Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost and fair
value is recognised in OCL No change in EIR due to

reclassification.

FVOCI Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
amortised cost carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value.
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Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new
carrying amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative

gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassificed
to P&L at the reclassification date.

{v) Empairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) moadel for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

¢ Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

o Financial assects that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTQCI

o [Lease receivables under Ind-AS 17

* Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial assct that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

+  Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

 Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
* Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18, if they do not contain a significant financing component
e Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS
11 and Ind AS 18 that contain a significant financing compenent, if the Company applies
practical expedient to ignore separation of time value of money, and
»  All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used, If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resuiting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which

w



results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within {2 months after the
reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms

ECL tmpairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected in a separate line under
the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

* Inancial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease receivables: ECL
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carryving amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

s Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount” in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on-a timely
basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets,
i.e., financial assets. which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

b} Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilitics
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of financial
liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the issue of the financial liabilities.




The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

(ii) Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

¢  Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or foss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading il they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and Joss.

o Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
boirowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the £IR

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance sheet when,
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged

or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 7
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss,




¢)

Offsctting of financial instraments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to scttle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, options, cross
currency swaps and interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair valuc is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if
a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
s Tair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised assct
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
» Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure io variability in cash [lows that is cither
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or fiability or a highly probable
forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment
e Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such-hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the
financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash
flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.
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The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in
forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for it exposure
to volatility in the commeodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is
recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to commeodity contracts is recognised
in other income or expenses.

Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit
orloss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast
sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
liability.

If' the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover
(as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm
commitment is met. ;

3.12. Cash and cash cquivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the

Company’s cash management,

3.13. Goveroment Grants and Export incentives

sovernment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, 3
arc expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the
expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair
vatue amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful [ife in a pattern of consumption of the
benefit of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided
by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the
effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially
recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the
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initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

Iixport Incentive
Eixport incentives under various schemes notifted by government are accounted for in the year of exports
based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

3.14. Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Cwirent income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions :
taken m the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations arc subject to
interpretation and cstablishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Delerred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

»  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

¢ Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and intercsts in
Jjoint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of uriused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
ol unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

s  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time '
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
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= In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the cxtent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to Lhe extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset 10 be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacfed or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Delerred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
cither in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets-and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent that there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the
period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes
tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The
Company reviews such tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the
Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Deferred tax includes MAT tax credit.

3.15. Employee Benefits

a} Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages, banus, short term compensated absences, awards,
ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and the same are recognised in the period in which the employee
renders the related service,

b} Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined beunelit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme is Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of
the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit
plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.




Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the assel ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the Statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on :
curtailments and non-routine settlements: and <
s Net interest expense or income :

¢} Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present
value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans, the fair value of plan asset is
reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

3.16. Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Dilited EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
mumber of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares

into ardinary shares,
3.17. Provisions

Greneral

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required
to scitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain,
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement,
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using 4 current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissiening costs of a manufacturing facility for the production
of its goods. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the
obligation, to the extent ascertainable, using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of
the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to
the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed
annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied
are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

"The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about thesc assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asscts or
liabilities affected in future periods.

4.1, Estimates and assumption

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting,
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
ltabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market chahges or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these.assumptions. Al assumptions. are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rale,
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies
of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond
with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for
quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the
discount rate is based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.
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The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected [uture
mflation rates for the country.,

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 27.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial labilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valtuation techniques.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could alfect
the reported lair value of financial instruments. See Note 32 for further disclosures.

Allowanee for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing
of the receivable balance and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor reccivables is
grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables
are written off when management deems them not to be collectible. The carrying amount of allowance for
doubtful debts is Rs. 62,92,182/- (March 31, 2016 : Rs. Nil and April 1, 2015 : Rs. Nil).

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be avaijable against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategics.

The Company has taxable temporary difference and tax planning opportunities available that could partly
support the recognition of these credits as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Company has determined
that it can recognise deferred tax assets on the tax credits carried forward.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 25.

Intangible assets
Refer Note 3.7 for the estimated useful life of Intangible assets, The carrying value of Intangible assets has
been disclosed i Note 6.

Property, plant and equipment
Refer Note 3.5 for the estimated useful life of Property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of
Property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in Note 5.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s
length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of theassct. The
valuc in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next
{ive years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is riot yet commitied 1o or significant

b




future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive Lo the discount rate used for the DCF mode! as well as the expected future cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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Arvind Goodlill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 7 : Financial assets

7 (a) Trade receivables

Pariiculars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Rupees Rupees
Current
Unsecured, considered good 134475977 [341,76,672
Doubtful 128.81,798 62,92,182
Lass © Allowancee for doubtful debis (128.81,798) (62,92.182)
Total Trade and other reccivables 1344,75,977 1341,76,672

Allowance for doubtful debts

Company has provided aliowance for doubtful debts based on the lifetimé expected credit loss model using provision matrix.

Movement in allowance for doubtful debt :

Particulars

As at March 31,2018

As af Marceh 31,2017

Rupees Rupees
Balance at the beginning of the year 62,92,182 “
Add 7 Allowance for the year {Note 24) 65,89,616 62.92.182
Less - Write off of bad debts {net of recovery) - -
Bakaince at the end of the year 128,81,798 62,92,182
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7 (b) Loans

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Rupecs Rupees
Unsecured considered good
Non-curvent
Loans W employees 57,182 -
Totat Loans 57,182 -

7 (e) Cash and cash cquivalent

Particulars

As af March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Rupees Rupees

Balance with Bank
Carrent accounts and debif batance in cash credit accounts 11,539,974 14.19.064
Cash on hand 473 473
;:fuml cash and cash equivalents 11,60,447 14,19,537

7 (d) Other bank balance

iarticulars

As at March 31,2018

Asat March 31, 2017

Rupees Rupces
AAAAAA Jeposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 148,33,624 18.03,300
_Total other bank balances 148,33,624 18,03,300

7 {e) Other financial assets

Particulars

As atMarch 31,2018

As at March 31, 2417

. Rupees Rupees
Unsecured, considered good
Non-current
Seeurity deposits
From Others 210,80,000 173,10,060
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 114,21,157 249,04,569
325,01,157 422,14,569
Carrent
{ncome receivable 33.38,731 46,14,575
Reeeivable inrespect of Derivative contract - 9.56.853
33,338,731 55,71,428
Total financial assets 358,39,588 477,85,997

Foreign exchange forward contracts (Cash flow hedge)

Foreigu exchange forward conlracts, designaied as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable future purchases'/ sales in
lorcign curreney are at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) and change in the fair value are recognised in

clher comprehensive income.
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7 {1} Fimancial assets by category

Particulars I'VTPL, FVOCI Amortised cost
Mareh 31,2018
Trade reecivables - 134475977
Loans - 37,182
Cash & bank balance - 159,94 071
Other financial assels - 358.39 888
Total Financial assets - 186367117
Particulars FYTPL FVOCl1 Amortised cost
March 31,2047
Trade receivables - - 134176072
f.ouns - - -
Cash & bank balance - - 32,22 837
(hher financial assets - 0.56,853 468,29, 144
Total Financial asseis - 9,560,853 1842,28,653

I'or tFinancial instruments risk management objectives and policics, refer Note 33.
[Fair value disclosures for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 31 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 32.

Nate 8 : (Mber corrent / non-current assets

As at March 31,2018

As at Mlarch 31,2017

Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Unsecured. considered good
Non-current
Capitad advances 6,190 38,79,755
Pre-paid expense
6,190 38,79,755
Current
Advance 1o supplicrs
To Others 431,19.589 343.20,928
Sales tax/VVA'T/ Cenvat Receivable, GST, ete, 252.36,240 18,711,688
Export incentive receivable 579,80,872 242.09,107
[Mepiid expenses 15,800,641 11,00,213
(Other Current Asset 36,56,639 20,68,840
1315,73,981 635,70,776
Total 1315,80,171 674,50,531
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Nede 9 ¢ Inventories (Al lower of cost and net realisable value)

. As at March 31,2018 As at Mareh 31, 2047
Particularsg
Rupees Rupees
Raw materials 296,79,751 437.99,.365
Accessories 303,510,176 769,63,498
Fuet 12,56,536 10,406,315
Waork-in-progress 182,00,383 249.38.538
Finished goods 1355,16,902 1058,35,956
Stores and spares 40.37,364 26,61.526
Taotal 2890,01,112 2552,45,198

Note 16 : Current Tax Assets {Net)

Particulars

As at March 31,2018

As at March 31, 2017

Rupces Rupees
Tax Paid in Advance (Net of Provision) 2,18,075 i7.11.835
Total 2,18,075 17,11,835




Aevind Goodhill Swit Manufacluring Private Limited
Noles to the Fiancial Statements

Note 112 Eguity share capital

Particakars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
' o No. of shares Rupees Ne. of shares Rupees
Authorised share cagital
Fyuity shares of Rs. 10 each 100,000,000 1000,00,000 160,000,000 [000,06,600
Issued and subscribed share capital
Fauity shares of Rs.10 cach G, 70,000 97,00,000 8.40,000 84,00,000
Subscrilred and fully paid up
ity shares off Rs.10 each 9,70,060 97.00,000 8,40,000 84,00,000
Foial 9,706,000 97,00,000 8,40,000 84,00,000
L1, Reconciliation of shares autstanding at the beginning and it the end of the Reporting period
. As aft March 31, 2018 . ..AsatMarch 31,2017
Particulars : e S '
No, of shares - Rupees—- “No,-of shares : Rupecs
At the beginning ol the period 8,40,000 84,00,060 8,40,000 §4,00,000
Add
Shares issued during the year [,30,000 13.00,000 - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 9,70,000 97,00,000 8,40,000 84,00,000

1.2, Terms/Righis attached to the equity shares

FThe Compitny has one class of shares referred to as equily shares having a par value of Rs.10 each. Each sharcholder is entitled to one
vote per share held, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehelders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. In the evenl of liguidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible 1o receive the remaining assets of the

Company after distribution of all préferential amounts, in proportion #o their sharchelding.

113 Number of Shares held by each shareholder holding mure than 5% Shares in the
company

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31,2017

Name of the Shareholder Yol %o of
: No. of shares 3 No. of shares N
sharehoiding sharchoiding
Arvind Limited- Helding Company 4,94,700 51.00 4,28.400 51.00
Gaodhill Corporation (lapan)- Asscoigte Company 2,81.300 29.00 2,43,600 29.00
F-One Limited (Japan)- Associate Company 1,594,000 20,00 1,68,000 20.00

£ Objective, pelicy and procedure of capital management, refer Note 34




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manelacturing Privare Limited
Notes o the Fanmend Strements

Nute 12 Other Equity

Batance As at March 31, 2018 As at Marck 31, 2007
Rupees Rupecs
Note 12,1 Reserves & Surplus
Seonrities preminm account
Balunce as per last financial statements 4018.00,000 49 1%,00,000
Revelved during e year 637.00,080 -
Balance at the end olMhe year 4655,00,000 4018,00,000
Surplus in statemerd of prafit awd losy
Batarice as per fast financial statements {311,14,092) (563,63,225)
Pravfi fur the year 468.29,304 235,57 341
OCT for the year 9,26,238 12,91,292
Hadance o1 the end of the year 166,411,450 (3K1,14,082)
Tatud reserves & surplus 482141, 450 3706,85,908
Nate 12,2 OQther compreliensive income
Hedge reserve
ialance as per last financial statements 6,61, 185 -
Add: gamn 7 {loss) for the year {38,96,559) 9,56,853
Foess: Tax impact 11,13,494 (2,95,608)
Batance at the end ol he yvear (21,21,580) 6,661,185
Totil Other comprehénsivi income {21,21,880) 6,611,185
Other equity 4800,19.570 3713,47,093

Note 13 Financial Jiabilities

i3 Gy Long-term Borvewings

Particuiars

As at. Mareh 31, 2018

As al March 31, 2017

S Rupees Rupées
Lung-teem Borrowings (vefer note (#) (o (¢) below)
Neu-curvenl pertion
Secnred
Term loan (Foms Banks 948,98,83] 1610,98,446
948,938,831 1650,98,446
Current nuaturilies
Secured
Term loan from Banks 669 84,874 650,00,000
669,84,874 650,00,000
Fetal long-tern horrewings 1618,83,705 216098446
Short-deent Borrowings (refer nate () & (e} below)
Sevured )
Warkitg Capital Loans repayable on demand from Banks 323,631,304 943,63,980
Linsecnred
Under buyer's Credit Arrangement 292,444,636 -
Intercorporate Deposils
From Reiwed Parties 2,08,878 $17,74.951
Export Packing Credit 1700,00,000 -
Uotad shoort-1eem berrawings 2318.16.818 1761,38,941
3937,00,523 4022,37,387

b




Particulars Amgount Rupees | Range of .| Terms of Repayment from Balance sheet date

Arving Goodhall Bwit Manusfactaring Privace Limited
Motes to dhe Fraaneral Statements

Nature yl yecority:
Eernr foan ol Rs. 16,18,83,705/-

Ferm Loans fram Banks of Rs. 15.91.32,129/- are secured by First charge over the enire fixed assets and second
charge over entire stock, recerveables and other current assets of the company both present and future.

hre Purchase loans from Banks of Rs. 27.51.576/- are secured against hypothication of relaled Vehicles.

Rate of beterest and Terns of Rejrayment

. Interest
(%)

¥ram Banks
Cunara ank 1128.00,000

Dase Rate
+ 1.03% | Repayable in 20 guarterly instelments starting from
quarter ending Junc 30, 2415

Sane Bank Of india 46332127
Base Rate
+4.40% | Repayable in 20 quarterly instalments starting from
quarter ending June 30, 2015

Hhire Purchase Loans 2751,576) 9.75% | Repayablein 60 equaled installments, ;

Nuture of Securigy
Warking Capital Facilities from Banks

Laans from banks are secured by:
t Fust charge ever entive stocks, veceivables and other current assets and second charge ever entire fixed assets of the Company both present and luture.

i Addionally sceured by Corporate Guarantee given by Arvind Limited, the holding company.
Rate of Enterest
Lo from banks carry inferest rales o 1.05% above base rate.

teter Corporate 1epasit carries interest rate of §0.25% per annums,

13 (b Teade payalde

. As al March 31,2018 As at March 31,2017
Particulars X
Rupees Rupees
Lurrent
Acceplanees - -
(nher trade pavable (Refer note below) 1TY7.67 486 2010,66,904
173767486 2010,06,964
Tutai - 1737,67,486 2010,66.964

The Company has not received any intimatian frons suppliers regarding their status under Lthe Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development {MSMED) Act, 200G and hence
dhisedosures ag reyuired under Section 22 of The Micre, Smalland Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 regarding,

ta) Prneipat amount and the interest due thereon remaining uapaid (6 any suppliers as at the end of accounting year,

th) Interest paid-during the year,

1o} Amouni of payment mide o the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting yeaz,

1d} Interest due and pavable Torthe period of delay i making payment; -

(e} fterest acerued and unpaid a1 the end of the accounting vear, and

{1 Further iierest remaiing due and payalile even in the succerding years, until such date when the interest ducs above are actually paid to the small enlerprise, have not beer
2Ien

The Company 1s making efforts te get the confirmations fron: the suppliers as regard Lo their sistus under the said Act

£S (e} Othier Reancial labilities

. As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Particulars .
Rupees Rugpees
Clurrent
Current matority o long lerm borrowings 669,84,874 650,00,000 :
Intezest necrsed but not due 1,20,298 17,368
Payahle to employces 188,84 802 17863013 :
Deposits from customers and others - 18.454
o Market of Derivative Financial Instrunents 29.19.706 - H
Tutal ] 889,29,680 338,38,33%

i



Arvind Goodlill Sust Manulacturing Private Limitied
Nivtes 1o the Financiel Statements

13 (48) Fimancial lialnilities by exlegory Rupees
Particubars EVTPL TYOCI Amortised cost
March 31, 2048
Borrowmies - - 3267,15,649
Tyade payable - - 1737,67.486
Carrent magurely of long e borrowings - - 669,84,874
Tntevest acerued but not due - - 1,20,298
Mark to Market ol Derivative Financral Insruments 29,39,706 -
fayable to cinploy - - 138,84 802
- 29.39,706 3864,73,109
ilorrawmy . - 3372,37,387
Trade payable - - 2010,66,964
Current maturity of ong term borrewings - - 650.00,900
Interest pecrued but nof doe - - 17.368
Pavable w employees - - 17803013
Depasits froth sustomers und gihers - - 18,434
Total Financial linbilities - - 6211,43,186
Vor Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 33,
Fair value disclosures for fnancial assets aad Habilities are in Note 31 and fair value kierarchy disclosures are in Note 32 :
MNare 141 Provisions
) As at March 31,2018 Asat March 31,2057 {
Particalars - i
Rupees Rupices :
Long-term i
Provision fur employee benefits (refer Note 27} ;
Provision for leave cieashment 33,453,550 20,5812 i
Provisior for gratuity 63.00,260 40,856,902 i
96,45,810 . 6E45,074 ;
Short-ferm
Provisuit for employee benelits (refer Note 27)
Provision for leave encashment 2.54,119 87,981
Proviston for graksty 92,447 29,739
346,566 1,i7,720
99,92,37¢ 62,62,794




Arvind Goodlill Buit Mawufacturing Private Limited
Notes o the Fuancial Staements
Note 15 - Government grant

Asg at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Particelars
Rupees - Ruprees
Now-eurreni
[elerred meome 29889874 320,70.755
298,89.874 320,70,758
Currenl
Deferred meome 21,80,38] 21,380,881
21,580,881 21,380,881
330,706,755 341.51,636

Cuvernment grans have been teceived for the purehase of certain items of properly, plant and equeipment, There are no unfisifilled

comdiions or casiingencies attached to these grants as at bMarch 31,

{foverment grant

As at March 31,2018 As_ at March 3‘!_, 2017
Rupees - : ; Rupecs
Asat Apnl i - 342,51.636 364,32.51%
Received during the year - -
Released to statement ufmjl[ and joss {2180,881} {21,80,851)
¢ 320,706,755 342,51,636
Note L6 : Odher current
. As at March 31,2018 - As:at March 31,2017
Particulars . I B R
Riipees o 7 "Rupees
Current .
Lbvimee fom custemers 2,81,29% 3742247
Statwery duos ineluding provident fund and tax deducted at 46,02,63% 61.43,747
souee
Other liabilities §,49,725 14,34,268
Tatal 57,33,661 113,20.262

wb




Arvind Goodhill Swit Manufacturing Privaie Limited
Noles e the Financial Statements

Note 17 : Revenue frem operations

, 200708 - 2016-17
Particulars . ;
Rupees Rupees !
Sale of products 8948,79.316 5211,13,054
Sale of services 28227473 275,09,883
Operating income
Waste sale 3,79,966 200,448
Export incentives 664,44,643 348,68,467
Exchange Difference (Net) 27,983,018 33,93.872
696,22,627 384,62.787
Total 9927,29.416 5870,85,724
Nute 18 1 (Mher income
. 2017-18 201617
Particulars 7
<" Rupees Rupeces
hiterest income 18,12,076 14,29 876
Government grants 25%,58,310 302,63,590
Exchange Difference (Net) on Buyer's Credit 27,57,302 -
Miseellancous income 49.51,005 11,63,996
Yolal 354,78,693 328.57.462

Government grants have been received lor the purchase ef certain items of property, plant and equipment. Additionally Governent grant is
received for Employee Benelit expenses as per State Governent scheme for employmient generation, There are no unful{illed conditions or
contingencies atlached.to these graats as at March 31, 2618,



Arvind Goodhill Snit Manulfacturing Private Limited
Notes o the Financial Statements
Note 191 Cost of raw materials and components consurned

. - 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Stock at the beginning of the vear 1207,62.863 608,07,591
Add Purchuses S14024 276 - 3664 01533
6347 87,139 4273,09,124
Less - Invertory at the end ol the year ' 129989927 1207,62.863
Raw matenials and components consumed 504797242 306546261
"l‘i)l:ll 5047,97,212 3065.46,261
Naote 20 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
. 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars . .
.~ Rupees Rupees
Stockoat the end of the year
Fimishéd gooeds 1355,16,902 1058,35,956
Work-in-Progress {82:00,383 249 38,538
1537,17,285 1307,74,494
Stock af the heginning of the year
Finished goods 1058.35,956 554,851,800
Work-in-Progress 249.38,538 52,99.652
1307,74,494 607.81,452
(tuerease) / Decrease i stocks (229,42,791) (699,93,042)
Total {229,42,791) (699.93,042)
Note 21 - Emiployee benefils expeitse
, 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars .
Rupees Rupies
Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, etc. {(Refer Note 27) 2560,34,689 2122,51,561
Contzibution 10 pravident and other {unds 23581418 241,31,890
Wellare and training expenses 30,85,243 2642 816
Total 2827,04,350 2390,26,267
Mot 22 1 Finance costs
" - 20§7-18 2016-17
Particulars s
Rupees Rupees
Interest expense - Loans 126.,83,986 231,52.6028
Interest expense - Working capital loans i50,42,156 05,66,474
Interest expense - olhers 5,83,730 25.20.734
Other finance cost 11,18,900 15,48,325
Tutal 294,128,771 337,95,361
Note 23 : Depreciation and amortization expense
. 2017-18. .. 2016-17
Particulars T : s
Rupees - Rupces
Depreciation on Tangible assets (Reter Note 5} 289,02,304 293,403,386
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 6,11,738 592,320
Tatal 305,14,042 299,32,706

b



Arvvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited

Notes e the Froaneial Statements

Note 24 ; Other expenscs

- 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars :
Rupees Rupces
Power and tuel 223,17,102 174,26,970
Stores consumed 72,43,042 67,35,785
nsurance 5,19.239 2.55,415
Processing charges 85,896,310 56,41,835
Prining. stalfonery & communication 22.91,364 52,41.937
Rent 255,89,605 247,61 276
Commissicn, Beokerage & discount - 1,860,946
Rates and taxes 12,936 -
Repairs
To Building - 109,389
To Machineries (inchuding spares consumptlion) 5867637 49,337,932
To others 128,167 4,355,069
Fretght. insurance & clearing charge 25325456 11745579
Legal & Professional charges 34,71,244 1616210
Conveyance & Travelling expense 15,12,735 2500418
Advertisement-and publicity 22,000 -
Secutiy Expenses 36,88,290 20,68,382
Misculiancous Labour charpes 1,22,000 -
Atlowance for doubtful debis 65,89, 616 62.92,182
Loss on Sale of Fixed Asscts 7,59.356 -
Bad debt written off 34,19,151 9.89 501
Bank chiirges 33,45,227 15,253,178
Auditor's. remuneration Q71,624 5,26,250
Miscellaneous expenses 87.61,692 G7.70,827
Total 1310,53,794 1027,79,081
Paymenl (o Auditors (Net of service tax)
. .2017-18 2016-17
Particulyes
Rupecs Rupees
Payment to Auditors as
Auditors 4,25000 2,50,600
For tax audit 1,00,000 55,600
For taxation malters 33,750 22,500
For Other certiticition work 3,57.270 1,62,180
I"or reunbursement of expenses 55,604 30,570
Totak 9,71,624 526,250

o



Avrvind Gondhill Suit Manafacturing Private Limited
Notes 1o the Financial Statements

Note 17 @ Revenue from operations

N ) 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Sale of products . 8948.79.316 5211,13,054
Sale ol servives 28227473 275,09 883
Operaling income
Waste sale 3,79,966 2,000,448
Export ingentives 664,44 643 348,608,467
Exchange Difference (Net) 2798018 33,093,872
696,322,627 384,62,787
Total 9927,29.416 5870,85,724
Nole 18 : Other income
. 2017-18 2016-17
Parficulars
Rupees Rupees
huterest income 18,12,076 14,29 876
Government grants 259,58,310 302,63,550
Exchange Difterence (Net) on Buyer's Credit 27,57,302 -
Miscellancous income 48,501,005 11,635,996
Tufal 354,78,693 328.57.462

Govermesd grants have been received for the purchase of certain ilems of property, plant and-equipment. Additionally Governent grant is
received for Employee Denefit expenses as per State Governent scheme for employment generation. There are no indulfilled conditions or
vonungencics attached to these grams as at March 31, 2018.

o



Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Nofes to the Frnancial Statements
Note 19 1 Cost of raw matertals and components consumed

. S 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars . e T .
N Rupces Rupees
Stock at the beginning of the year 1207,62,863 609.07.591
Add : Purchases ) 5140.24,276 3664,01,533
634787139 4273,09,124
Less o Inventory at the end of the year 1299,89,927 1207,62,863
Raw materials and components consumed 5047,97,212 3005,46,261
Total ‘ 5047,97,212 3065.46,201
Note 20 : Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
. 2017-18 2016-17
Particulirs
Rupees Rupees
Stock at the end of the year
Fintished goocls 1355,16,902 1058,35,950
Work-in-Progress 182,00,383 249.38,538
£537,i7,285 1307,74,494
Stock at the beginming of the year
Fimished goods 1058,35,956 554,81,800
Work-in-Progress 249,38,538 52,00.652
1307,74,494 607,81,452
{Increase) / Decrease in stocks (229,42,791) {699,93,042)
Total (22942,791) (699,93,042)
Note 21 s Ewployee benefifs expense
. 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars
" Rupees Rupees
Salaries. wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, ¢te. (Refer Note 27) 2560,34,689 212251561
Contribution 1o provident and other funds 23581418 341.31,890
Welfure and training expenses 30,85,243 2042 810
Tats - 2827,01,350 2390,26,267

Note'22 : Finance costs

R 220171800 0 ) 2016-17
Particulars RN )
C"Rupees ™ - Rupees
[aterest expensec.- Loans 126,83.986 331,52.628
Interest expense - Working capital loans 150,42,156 05,66.474
laterest expense - others 5,83,730 2527.734
Other finance cost i1,18,900 {548,525
Tulal 294,28,771 337,95,361
Note 23 : Depreciation and amortization expense
. 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars
Rupees - Rupees
[)uprcc?ulion on Tangible assets (Reler Nole 5) 299,02,304 293,400,386
Amortization on Intangible asscls {Refer Note 6) 6,11,738 592,320
“Total 305,14,042 299,32,706

b



Axrvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes o the Financial Statements

Note 24 : (iher expenses

\ 2017-18 201617
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Power and fucl 222.17,102 174,26,970
Stores consumed 72,43,042 67,35,785
Insurance 9,19,239 2,55415
Processing charges 85,96,310 36,41,835
Printing, stationery & commuznication 2291364 52.41,937
Remt 255.89,605 24761276
Commission, Brokerage & discount ' - £,80.946
Rates and taxes 12,934 -
Repairs
To Building - 1,09,389
‘To Machineries {including spares consumption) 58,67,637 49,37,932
Ta others 1.28.167 4,355,069
Freipht, insuranee & clearing charge 255,25456 117,45,579
Lepal & Professional ¢harges 34,71,244 16,16,210
Conveyance & Travelling expense 15,12,735 25,00,418
Advertisement and publicity 22,000 -
Secutiy Ixpenses 36,88,290 20,68,382
Misceltaneous Eabour charges £,22.000 -
Allowance for doubtful debts 65,839,616 6292182
Lass on Sale of Fixed Asseats 7,59,356 -
Bad debt writien of 3419151 9,89,501
Bank charges 33,45.227 15,23,178
Auditor's remuneration 9.71.624 5.26.250
Miscallaneous expenses 87.61,692 97,741,827
Total 1310,53,794 1027,79,081
Payment to Anditors (Net-of service tax)
Particulars ;0]6'17
Rupees
Payment to Auditurs as
Auditors 4,25.000 2,530,000
For rax audit 1,060,000 55,000
For laxation matlers 33,750 22,500
For Other certification work 3,57,270 1,62,180
For reimbursement of expenscs 55,604 36,570
Total 9.71.624 5,206,250
»




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 25 : Income (ax
The mujor component ol income tax expense tor the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are :

R X 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Statement ol Profit and Loss
Cuorrent fax
Current income tax 131,91,776 -
Deferved tax
Delerred 1ax expense 126,34.651 (461,01,289)
Income ax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 258,206,427 (461,01,289)
OCT section
. 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Statement to Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Deferved tax related to items recogoised in OCI during the year
Nel loss/(gain} on actuarial gains and losses 356,995 577437
Net gains/ (loss) on hedging instruments in o cash flow hedge (11,13,494) 2,95,608
Deferred tax charged to OCI (7,56,448) 8,73,105
Reconciliation ol tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.
A) Current tax
. 2017-18 2016-17
Particulars
Rupees Rupees
Acconnting prefit before tax from continuing operations 726.,55,731 (221,43,448)
Tax tedi 34.608% (March 31, 2017 30.90%) 251,44,695 (68.42,325)
Adjustment
Linused Lax losses - (386,06,319)
(hers 6,81,731 {6,352 443)
At the edfective income Lax rale of 35.55% (March 31, 2017 - Nil) 258.26,420 (461,01,280)
1B) Deferred Lax
Balance Sheet. Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars _ March 31,2018 March 31,2017 March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
: S Rup Riip Ru.p'c'es-'.' . Rupees
Aceclermed depreciation for tax purposes (677,64,680) (719,92,114) (42,27 .434) (300,13 847y
Lxpenditure allowable én payment basis 24,22 887 13,38,688 (8.84,199) 1297417
Pravision for doubtful debt 35,83,716 19,44 284 (16,39,432) 19.44,284
Others 81581,703 1134,02,696 318,20,993 {184.36,039)
Unsued ax credit available 131,91,776 - {131.91,7106) -
Deferred tax expense/{income) 118,78,152 (452,28,184)
Net deferred tax assels/(linbilities) 330,15,403 448,93,555 ’
Hefleeted in the balance sheet as follows
Delerred tnx assels 1007,80,083 1168.85,668
Deferred tax liabilitics {677,64,680) (719,92,114)
Deferred tax (liabititiesYassets net 330,15,403 448,93,555
March 31,
March 31, 2018 2017
Reconcilintion of deferred tax assets / (liabilities}, net Rupecs Rupecs
Opening balance as of Aprit 1 448,93,555 (3,34.629)
Tax mcomedexpense) during the period recognised in profit or loss {126,34,651) 461,01,289
Tux incomed(expense) during the period recognised in OCI 7.56,498 (8,73,105)
Closing balance as at March 31 330,15,403 448,93,535

The Company ollsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current

tax linbitities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate o income taxes levied by the same tax authorily.

w




Arvind Goodhill Seit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes 1o the Financiat Statements

Note 26 : Foreign Exchange Devivatives and Exposures not hedged-

Al Foreign Exchange Derivatives

Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017
Nature of instrument Currency In Foreien C I . In Foreiga C
n Foreign Currency " oo Rupees n Foreign Currency Rupees
Forwvard contracts
Sales GBP 4,354,614 421,73,168 3,48,991 283,435,897
Usp 43,21,027 281449816 ) - -
Adt derrvative contracts stated above are for the purpese of hedging the vnderlying foreign currency exposure.
B. Exposare Not Hedged
" Yearended March'31,2018 Year ended March 31, 2017
Nature of exposure Currency Forei .C : . S " In Foreign C
\ B
In Foreign Currency . Rupees. In Forcign Currency Rupees
Receivables LSD 1,84,191 120,34,885 5,10,634 331.14,605
EUR 115,00 7,969
GBP 3.95,433 332,23,182 4,11,207 332.67.678
Payable wwards borrowings UsD 448,709 292.44,609 - -
Payable o creditors UsD 4,517,535 304,23,063 3,62.529 235,09.982
EURO
GBP [1.52,543 148,58,642 193,427 156,48.719
EUR 25,642 20,96,261 .
JPY 66,955 34,823 66,955 38.851
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Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Eimited
Notes to the Financial Statemenis

* Note 28 : Related Party Disclosure

As per the Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party {isclosures” (IND AS 24), the refuted parties of the Company arc as follows

Nare of Reiated Partics and Naturc of Relationship :

-l

Arvind Linited

Arvind Internet Limited

Arvind Fashion Limited

Arvind Envisol

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited

Arvind True Blue Limited

Premium Garment Wholsesate Private Limited(CK)
Goodhill Corporation

F-Une Lamited

O& ~1 Gh th I d b o

o

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company
Teliow Subsidiary Company
Feliow Subsidiary Company
Fellow Subsidiary Company
Fellow Subsidiary Company
Fellow Joint Venture
Associate Company

Associate Company.

Note: Related parly relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upen by the Auditors.

Arvind Limited

b Disclosure in respect of Related Party Transactions :

Rupees
‘Mirch 31520184 2017

Proceysing Income

Arvind Limited 15,336,592 15,429,642
Sales

Arvind Limited 3,855,570 1,926,985

Goodhill Cerporation 640,520

Arvind Fashion Limited 98,035,755

Premium Garment Wholsesale Private Limited 2.928.036 14843758

Arving Lifesivle Brands Limited 44,800 55,791,391

Arvind True Blue Limited - 2.052,950
Interest Expense

Arvind Envisol 232088 B
Purchase

Arvind Fashion Limited 114,338 -

Arvind Limited 9227437 78,145

Goodhill Corporation 61,360 -
TCD Received

Arvind Fuvisol 133,000,600 M
1CD Paid

Arvind Envisol 133,000,000 -
Issue of Equity Shares

Arvind Limited 33,150,000 -

Goodhill Corporation 18,850,000 -

F-One Limited 13,000,000 -
Qutstanding
Receivable in respect of Current Assets

Arvind Timited 5,126,386 367,567

Premmium Garment Wholsesale Private Limiled 376,732 2,471,429

Arvind Fashion Limited 29.334.747

Goodhit Corporation 322,447

Arvind Eafestyle Brands Limited 44 300 22,176,634
Payable in respect of Current Liabilitics

Arvind Envisol Lirirted 208,878

F-One Limited 42,218

Arvind True Blue Limited - 24,416

Arvind Limited 18,301,278 8,600,175

b




Arvind Goodhili Suit Mamsfacturing Private Limited
Noies fo 1he Financial Statements

« Transactions and Bulances :

Fellow S

Yoot ended
SReC

ubsidiary Compank

Transactions

Inferest Bapense - - 232088 - -
imter Comorate Daposd recaived - 133.000.000 - -
Provessting ibcoes 5,336,502 - - -
Sales 3.855.570 1926985 101,628 591 T2.688.099 0,520
Turchases QORT.4¥Y 78145 114.338 - £1.360
Inter Carperate Deposit paid B - -
Issue ol Bquity Shares 33,1 50.000 - 133,400 000 - 31850000

Fellow Subsidiiiy Conipanics

rended :

Balances s al year ted

Trade and Cither Receivable 5,126,385 367,567 29.756.280 4645063 3447

Trade and Cther Pavable 1®.501,278 8600135 2064.878 24,418 42,218
o Terms.and condittons of transactions with related parties

1) Transaction enitred into with related party are fade on tefms equivalent to those that-prevail i arm’s length { ling ik other than

loan given & taken and foér value of financial guarantec at the year-gad are « and inierest free and setilement ocewrs in cash,

2) Loans in TR ghvon to the related perty carrics inlereat rate of %24 (March 31, 7017 & 10.25% ).

Commitments with refated parties
The Company has not provided any commitment 1o the selated party a8 af March 31, 2018 (March 31, 201 7: RsNil)

-

o
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Arvind Goedhill Soit Monolacturing Private Limited
Mides o the Financial Stilements

Note 33 @ Finantial inglraments manzpeent bjeciives and policies
s, comprise borrowings and trade & eiher payables. The miain purpese of these [nancial labilities is Lo finance the

principal financial assets include Invesiments, loans given, lrade and other teceivables and cush & shori-term diposits

The Company’s prseipal. financial linbilives. oder- than derivativ
Company s operations and 1o support its operations. The Company
s derive direclly iom its operaions

The Cranpany’s activities expose it 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In order o minimise any adverse effects on the financial perfonmance of (he company, derivative financial
wnstruments. such as foreign exchange farward conlracts. feign currency oplion contracts are enfered to hedge cerain foreign currency expasures and inferest-rate swaps 10 hedge certain
vunable mterest rale expasures. Derivatives are used exclusiveby for hedging, purposes and net as trading / specutative insituments.

the Comprn’s msk managenient is carried out by a Treasury depariment amder policies approved bythe Board of directors, Company's treasury identifies, evaluates and hedyes financial
risks i close co-operalion with the Company’s eperating units. The board providés writlen principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as Toreign
wnehange sisk. miterest rade rish. credit risk. wse o derivative finaneial instruments aimd non-derivative Tinancial instuments. and mvesiment of oxcess liguidity.

Aarkel risk

Mkt resk is the nsk that the fare value ¢f Ratare cash flows ol o fnancial instrunent will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Macket sk comprises three types of risk: inlerest
rake risk curcency risk i alher price risk, such as equily price Tisk and commodity risk: Financial instruments affected by marke: risk include hormmngs deposils, Investments, trade and
ather recarvahies, tmde and other pivables and derivative financial instruments,

Wil the various methadelogies to'analyse and manage risk. Company has implemented a system based on “sensitivity analysis” on symmetric basis. This (ool enables the zisk managers o
wlently the risk positon of the entities, Sensitivity analysis provides an approximate quantification of the exposure in the event that certain specified paramelers were to be met undera
speaific selof assumptions. The risk eslimates pro\xded liere assume:

aparalled shift of £ basis poud of the inlerest mie veild curves in il the currencies.

2 sumulaneoes, parallel foreigh axchange rates shifl in which the INR appreciates / depreciates against all currencies by 2%

T he potential econemic impact, due (o these assumptions, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse markel conditions and reflects eslimated changes resulting from the sensilivily
analesis. Actual results Gt are inclicded in the Statemint of profit & luss may differ matezially from these estimates due Lo actual developments in the global fnancial maskets

The analyses exclude the ipact of movements in market variables on: the carnying values of graluily, pension and other posi-retirement obligations ad provisions

Tl foblowing assamgiion has been made in calculating the seqsitivity analyses:
The sensitivity of the refeyi siatement of profit or loss iten 1s ihe effect of the assumed changes in tespective market risks, This is based on the linanciat assets and linancial liabilities

Frefud ot Marciy 3102608 and March 31, 2007 inciuding the effect of hedge accounting,

ted by: considering e effect of any associated eash Mow bedges as al Morch 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 for the effeets of the assumed changes of the

- The sunsiviy of equity is calel
anderlvng sk

Tnterest ride risk
tmerest rale risk arises from Ibe sensitivity of financial asseis and fiabifities o changes'in narker rates of interest. The Company seeks lo miligale such risk by efitering into inlerest fale
derivative Tinpnctal instruments such 1s interest Fate swaps or eross-curtency interest rate swaps. Inierest rale swap agreements are used (o adjust the proportion of tolaf debt, thal are subject

W vaniabile and fxed inierest rmtes.

Ltisder an inplorest mile swap agreament. e Company-either agrees 1o pay an amount equal 1o a specilied fixed-raie ol interest times a notiona] principal ameunt, and to receive in retur an
mnaunt equal ke o specified variable-rae of interest (imes the same notional principal amount or, vice-versa, 1o receive a fixed-rate amount and to pay a variable-rate amoun. The notional
aumouns of the éniracts ure ol exchanged. No other cash payments are made unless the agreement is terminated prior 1o maturity, in which case the amount paid or received in setitement
1> esiablished by agreement al the tine of lermination. and usually represents the net present value, at current rates of interest, of the remaming obligations 1o exchange payments under the

terns i e contract

Inteyest raie sensilivily
The fillawing fablte demonsuates the sensiivily (o a reasonably possible change in micrest rates on thas portion of Toans and borrowings alfecled, afler the impact of hedge accouming. Wih
s prolil befare tax s alfectoil through the impact on floating raie borrewings, as follows:

3 ether varmbles held constant. the Coniprny




Arvind Goodhilk Sujt Manufacturing Privaie Limited
Motes ta the Financial Statements

Marpeh 3£, 2018
Tncrease in SO basis points 971,235 971,235
Decrease i 50 basis points (971,235) {971,235)
March 31,2017 X
Tnecense in 50 basis points 1,602,312 1,602,312
1egrease 1 5 basis points i1,602312) {1,602 317)

Exclusion from this analysis are a8 folfows:
- Fixed zate financial instruments messured ot cost © Since a change in inferest rats would not change the carrying amount of this category of instraments, there is no net income fmpact and
they are exelusded from this analysis

- The effect of interest rate changes on future cast flows is excluded {ron this anafysis.

Fureign curreney risk

Foreign curtency risk is lhe pisk that the fair value or [uture cash flows of an exposure witl fluctunte because of changes in forvign axchange rates. The Company transacts business in jocal
curreney and in forelgn currency, nrbinarily in IS Tha Crrpany hus obisined o = poypbles md recrivables ote. and fa tharefire, sxposed
foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward contracts, foreign exchange options or currency swaps towards hedging risk resulting from changes and. Ductustions in fureign corency
exchange rate. These foreign sxchange contracts, caried at fair value, may have v&rjﬂng maturities varying depending upen the primary host contract requirements and risk management stiategy

of the company.

currency loans end bas foreipn currency tmd

The Company manages it foreign currency risk by hedging appropriste pereentaye of its forcign surrency sxposure, as approved by Board ot per established risk managament policy. Details
of the hedge & unhedged position of the Company given in Nole no. 26

Foreign currency sensilivity
The fallo“mg Iablrs demonstmte the scnsmvuy 1o a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR and GBP rates to the fimetional carrency of respeclive entity, with all other variables heid
211 other mrenni t materinl The impact on the m‘wm;!., rperfit h..rm to i e fos phemess i the fait vabor of

Murch 31,2018 +i% {367,764} {367,764)
-2% 367,764 367,764
March 31, 207 L3 2,09 1,002

2% {192, 0923 {192,092}

March 31, 2014 +2% (41,925) (41,925)
2% 41,925 41925
March 31, 2017 1% 159 i3
2% (150 1159

March 31,2018 2% 367,291 347,201
1% (367.291) {367.291)

March 31, 2017 1% 352379 152,379
2% (352,379} {35237

March 31, 2018 2% {696) 696)
2% 696 696

Maech 31,2017 +2% am )
2% 777 771

Wi




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Privaie Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

The mevement in the pre-tax effect is a resuit of a change in the fair value of financial instruments not designated in 2 hedge relationship, Althouph the financial instruments have not heen
desigrated in o hedge relalionship, they sct as an sconemic hedge and will olfset the underlying transactions when they oceur.

(b) Creditrisk

¢

™

2

Credit risk is the risk that @ counterpaty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading ro o financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from
its aperating activities {primanily trede receivables) and Erom-its fnancing setivisies, incloding deposits with banks, foreign exchenge transactions and other finoncis? instruments,

Trade receivables

Custoroer credit risk is managed by each business unit subjeat to the Company™s established policy, procedures and control zelating to customer credjt risk management. Trade receivables are
non-interest bearing and rre generally on 14 days 10 30 days credit term. Credid lunits are established for all custonsers based on intemal rating criteria. Cutstanding customer receivables are
regutarty monitored and any shipments Lo major custoners are generally covered by letters of eredit. The Company has ne coreentration of credit isk as the customer baxe is-widely distributed
both economieally and geogriphically.

An impirment analysis is performed ot each zeporting date o2 an individual basis for major clients. In addition, o large number of minor receivables are grouped mnta homegenous groups and
assessed for impaiment collestively. The coloulation is based on 2ciual incwred historical dats. The maxinmum exposure to eredit sk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets disclosed in Nowe 7 The Company does nol hold sollateral as scourity. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade recowvables as low, as ity
customers are Jocated in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Financlal instruments and eash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks end fmancial instiutions is managed by the Cempany’s treasury department in accordance with the Conpany's-policy. Tnvestments of surplus. funds are
made only with approved counterparties who meels the minimum thréshold requirements uader the counterpasty risk sssessment prucess. The Company monitors the tatings, credit spreads
and financial strength of its counterprrties. Based on its on-going assessment of counterpaity risk, the group adjusts its exposurs to vorious counterparties, The Company's maximum exposure
to eredit risk for the compeneats of the Bulance sheet as of Mazeh 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 is the cairying amount &s disclosed in Note 31,

Liquidity cisk

Liquitlity xisk is the risk that the Company may not ba ahle to meet its present mnd futurs cash. and collateral obligations without incurring inacoeptabile Josses. The Comparny's oljeetive is o,
at alf tithes maintain optimum tevels of liquidity Lo muet its cash.and collaterat requiremeins. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a Tobust cash management
system. It maintains adoquate sources of financing including bilateral Touns, debt and overdraft from beth domestic and internationzl banks at an optimzsed cost. It alse enjoys strong access to
domestic capital markets across equity.

The tabls below summarises the inaturity profile of the Company's financial lisbilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Year ended March 31, 2018

Tnterest beating borrowings® 202,363,304 46,638,388 94,898,831
Trade pavabics 157,954,303 15,812,683
{ther finsncial fiabifities# £8.929.680
149,247,787 62,451,072 49,800,000 04,898 831 .
Year ended Maorch 31,2017 .
Interest hoaring borowings® 17138941 36.000,000 48 (00,600 161,688,446 -
“Tracle payables 171,508,368 26,872,875 238520 - -
Ciber financiad Hahilnica $2.833.835 - - - -
431,786,144 42,872 876 50385720 161,098,446 -

* Inctudes contractual interest payment hased on interest rate prevailing at the end.of the reporting period over the tenor of the borrowings.
#Other financial lisbilities includes interest accrued but not due of Rs. 1,20,298 (uarch 31, 2007 : Rs.17,368). Current ipattrity of long-term borrowings is included in interest bearing
TosTowing part i above note.

Note 34 : Capltal manngement
For the purpose of the (“wupany capital management, capitaf includes issusd equity capital and alf other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the (,Dmpany The pmmuy
healthy copital o410 order (o suppart its h

o eerre it 3 motntadne my 6T

= zapifal memepemy < grzure i 3 melnteme t £FR capital strusture

shisctive of the Compn
value.

The Company ranages it capital struciure and makes adjustments te it in fight of changes in economic conditions or its business requirsments. To naintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retism capital to shareholders o1 fssuc new shares, The Comipany monitors cepital using & gearing ratio, which s ne: debt divided
by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearmg Joans and borcowings less cash and shert-term doposits {including other bank balance}.

Interest-bearing loans and borrewings 393,708,523 402,237,387
(Note 13 9)

Less: cash and cash equivalent (27.415,228) {28,127.404)
¢including ather bank balance) {Note ¥

<

Net debt 366,185.295 374,109,981

Equity share capital Nate 113 9,700,000 5,400,008
Other exquity (Note 12) 480,019,570 371,347,093

Totad capital 452,715,571 370,737,893

Capital and net debt 856,004,865 ’.‘53.‘857,074
Gearing ratio 42.79% 49.63%

In order to achieve thiy overall objective, the Company’s capital mansgament, amongs! other things, aims t6 ensure that il meets Enanciul covenants sttached to the interest-bearing loans nnd
bosrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit ihe bank to immediately calf loans snd borrowings. There have been no
breaches in the finaneial covenants of any interest-bearing loans end bamawing in the curent period.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for mansping capital during the years ended March 31, 2018 and Maech 31, 2017,

Loen covenants
Uliadier the topms of the majer barrowing Facifities, the Company has complied with the respired finmncial covenants through out the reporting periods.

w7




Arvind Goodhill Suit Manufacturing Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statiements

Note 35 : Operating segment

The Company's busingss activity falls within a single primary business segment of manufaciure of garments.
Accordingly the Company is a single segmeni company in accordance with Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment”.

Further. no single customer contributes {o more than 10% of the company's revenue.

Geographical segment
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.

Rupees
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Segment Revenue*
4} In India : 202,325,093 251,606,017
b) Rest of the world 790,404,323 335,479,707
Total Sales 992,729,416 587,085,724
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets**
a) In India 1,060,538,925 1,035,118,988
b) Rest of the world 66,390,252 17,605,983
Total 1,126,929,177 1,052,724,971
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets**@)
a) In India- 486,753,488 502,118,101
b) Rest of the world - -
Total 486,753,488 502,118,101

* Based on location of Customers
** Based on location of Assets
(@ Excluding Financial Assets and deferred tax asset.

36 Standards issued but not effective
The standard issued, but not yet effective up to the date of isswance of the Company’s financial statements is disclosed below. The

Cempany intends to adopt this standard when it becomes effective.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Fereign currency transactions and advance consideration

Ot March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“"MCA™} has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 contair
Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use «
related asset, expense or income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from | April 2018. The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial state
Ind AS 21-is expected to be insignificant.”

Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers
Tn March 2018, the Ministry of Cotporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended rules”). As
1135 “Revenue from contracts with customers” supersedes Tnd AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind A8 18, “Revenue” and is applicable for all accounti

after 1 April 2018.

Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of reverme transactions. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised
control.of goods or services to a customer atthe amount io which the entity expects to be entitled. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures al
and vncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with custoimers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:
= Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
» Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach)

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 1s expected

37 Regrouped, Recast, Reclassified
Fipures of the earlier year have been regrouped to conform with those of current year.




